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CAPE MAY LIGHTHOUSE, c. 1911. Construction began in 1857 to replace two earlier Cape May Point lighthouses lost to the elements. Until electrification in 1938, the U.S. Lighthouse Service keepers carried fuel up the 157-foot tower and maintained lens apparatus daily. An 1860 keepers’ house is on the right; the 1893 oil house is on the left.
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THORNTON POCHER, 1904. This raggedy real photo postcard of the author’s father was discovered during the 1980s, tucked away with others in a shoebox at the family home on South Lafayette Street. That small treasure trove of cards sent by little Popo from Cape May to his father in New York became the catalyst for the collection illustrating this book.
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MAP FOR ORIENTATION. Notice that many of the streets in early Cape May were named for presidents and military leaders: Washington, Madison, Jackson, Grant, Lafayette, and Decatur, for example. Planners of the east end’s New Cape May chose to name streets for cities and states to stress that this development was of national interest.






Introduction

When the 20th century was young, visitors to Cape May, New Jersey knew exactly how to show the folks back home the attractions, accommodations, and ambiance of the nation’s oldest seaside resort—they sent a penny postcard.

Publishers provided a vast choice of views, capturing white sands crowded with colorful tents and wool-suited bathers or the beachfront Stockton, Lafayette, and Congress Hall Hotels with their towering white columns. Popular postcards depicted the Casino, Red Mill, the Corinthian Yacht Club, the Fun Factory, the Convention Hall, and the Cape May Point Lighthouse. Reprinted Victorian views of hotels destroyed by fire served as reminders of the resort’s glory days. Real photo cards chronicled newsworthy events including the creation of the harbor, the construction of huge modern Hotel Cape May, and the 1907 fire at the Iron Pier.

Postcards were mass produced for the first time in America in 1893 for the World’s Columbian Exposition in Chicago. Before you could sing “Meet Me in St. Louis, Looey,” the proliferation of postcards available at the next World’s Fair in 1904 triggered a postcard craze. Tourists no longer had to be content with a pretty view printed on a paper card. They could send one trimmed with silk or made of wood. Some revealed hidden pictures or glowing windows when held to the light and others had mechanical parts. How could the recipients resist saving such souvenirs?

As the selection of cards expanded to include greetings to suit almost any occasion and small town views, the number of collectors burgeoned. Friends exchanged cards, held postcard “showers,” and organized clubs. Between 1906 and 1907, the Jolly Jokers expanded to 25 states and over 2,300 members, becoming America’s largest postcard club.

Postcards to arrange in albums, communicate messages, or send as souvenirs could be found everywhere from corner stores to cigar stands, as well as in postcard shops. Local businessmen became publishers of hometown postcards by sending black-and-white photographs plus instructions for color schemes to city printers who, prior to World War I, often shipped them to Germany to be printed on sophisticated presses.

Here in Cape May, postcards from over 25 different publishers were sold, but the leader was entrepreneur Joseph K. Hand, a paperhanger whose father and grandfather were prominent jewelers specializing in Cape May diamonds. On a 1909 card, he describes himself as “Importer and Jobber of Postcards.” His publisher of choice was the Albertype Company of Brooklyn, New York. Both collectors and residents treasure these hand-colored images of old Cape May.

Between 1903 and 1913, the Golden Age of postcards, thousands of penny postcards were mailed from Cape May. Thanks to packrats and collectors, an amazing percentage of these have survived. In Cape May, we offer a small sample of these vintage postcards, retrieved and researched, so that you can rediscover pre-World War II Cape May and explore the rich heritage that entitles this resort to be designated a National Landmark City.


 Don and Pat Pocher, 1998
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One

Historic Accommodations
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MOUNT VERNON HOTEL, c. 1853. About 1911, Joseph K. Hand used old engravings and photographs for a series of at least six cards illustrating early hotels lost to fire. Started in 1852 on 10 beachfront acres near Broadway, the monumental Mount Vernon boasted hot and cold running water, a gasworks, pistol galleries, ten-pin alleys, and accommodations for 2,100 before its blazing post-season devastation.
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UNITED STATES HOTEL, BUILT 1853. Today a book store stands where A.W. Tompkins built this grand hotel at Washington and Decatur Streets. One windy August morning in 1869, a fire that began at the nearby Pearl Diver’s curio shop quickly engulfed the hotel and its neighbors. Fortunately, Camden sent volunteer firemen and apparatus 90 miles by train to “extinguish the raging flames.”
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NEW ATLANTIC, c. 1848. This victim of the 1869 fire was built on the east side of Jackson Street by Philadelphia’s McMakin brothers, Delaware Bay steamboat owners. The Atlantic was the first Cape Island hotel with a painted exterior. Long rows of tables accommodated 350 diners in its 100-foot-long hall and the upper floors held 300 lodgers.
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OCEAN HOUSE. Cape May’s Great Fire began in this vacant Perry Street hotel at about 7 a.m. on November 9, 1878, shortly after proprietor Samuel Ludlam had left his insured establishment for Philadelphia. Firemen struggled to subdue the flames that swept rapidly from building to building, destroying over 35 acres by evening.
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CENTRE HOUSE, COMPLETED 1840. It was still morning when the fire jumped back across Perry Street from its second victim, Congress Hall, to envelop Jeremiah Mecray’s hotel, shown here with its Jackson Street wing on the left and tall columns extending along Washington Street to Perry on the right. The loss was estimated at $35,000.
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CONGRESS HALL, c. 1875. When Thomas H. Hughes built the first large hotel on Cape Island in 1816, dubious residents nicknamed it Tommy’s Folly. Hughes’s election to Congress inspired the present name. Shown here is the enlarged frame 1854 building, which sat on 7 acres stretching from South Lafayette Street to the beach, and from Perry to Congress Street. (M&SW.)
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STEREOSCOPE SLIDE: “VIEWS OF CAPE MAY AFTER THE FIRE, NOV. 9, 1878.” “Rear Congress Hall” is penciled on the back of this double-image card, which looks from Perry past Congress Street’s Neafie villa to the Grant Street Summer Station. Wind direction spared the west end from destruction. We prize the behind-the-chimney glimpse of our South Lafayette Street home.
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CONGRESS HALL, c. 1918. A stock company had purchased Congress Hall at J.F. Cake’s sheriff’s sale for $60,000 just six months before the fire. In 1879, E.C. Knight and associates rushed to rebuild both the hotel and the pier in time for the tourist season. This hall was of brick, smaller, and closer to the beach.
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CONGRESS HALL LOBBY, c. WORLD WAR I. Some out-of-town newspapers were optimistic in the wake of the Great Fire: “With new hotels, new men and fresh blood, Cape May’s future may be brighter than ever.” Indeed, this massive rebuilding would one day qualify Cape May as a National Landmark. Most of the elegant Congress Hall lobby has recently been converted to shops. (RE.)
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COLUMBIA HOUSE, BUILT 1846. Captain George Hildreth chose swampy meadow between Ocean and Decatur Streets for his hotel. By 1850, it had expanded to be the largest and most “aristocratic” on Cape Island. Though Columbia House escaped the 1869 fire, it could not be saved in 1878. Owner John Bullitt’s $55,000 insurance covered most of the loss.
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CHALFONTE HOTEL, c. 1907. Col. Henry Sawyer, builder of the Chalfonte in 1876, turned in the alarm for the Great Fire. The conflagration never reached his Howard Street hotel and the Chalfonte has continued to welcome guests to its gingerbread-trimmed verandahs ever since. Sawyer’s fame as a Confederate prisoner saved from a “lottery of death” endures, along with his hotel’s reputation for Southern hospitality. (M&SW.)



STEREOSCOPE SLIDE: “VIEWS OF CAPE MAY AFTER THE FIRE, NOV. 9, 1878.” Although two Stockton Row cottages caught fire and embers landed on the Stockton Hotel roof, firemen managed to halt the flames here at Guerney Street. The ruins are the bathhouses whose pumps, disconnected for the winter, were as useless as the hotels’ artesian wells and the firemen’s faulty hose.
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STOCKTON HOTEL, c. 1908. This mammoth survivor of the Great Fire occupied the entire block from Guerney to Howard Streets, from Columbia Avenue to the beach where the property had been under water until filled. When the West Jersey Railroad opened the Stockton in 1869, at a cost of $600,000 to stockholders, it was considered America’s largest hotel. By 1910, it was deemed obsolete and was razed.
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BALTIMORE HOTEL, BUILT c. 1868. One of about 17 smaller hotels remaining after the Great Fire, this three-story frame building at 642 Hughes Street was described in 1882 as one of the resort’s oldest summer houses, with “all the real and solid comforts of a private home.” The tall columns and simple shape illustrated on this c. 1940 card typify early Cape Island hotel style (see p. 84).
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ARLINGTON HOTEL, BUILT 1878. John Kromer of Baltimore had this 60-room hotel constructed right across from the Grant Street railroad station platforms. Known as the Wellington in 1911, on this 1920 postcard the hotel’s namesake was a popular author. Alcott House catered to working-class women and their children. Weekly rates in 1935 ranged from $9 to $15 for room and board.
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WINDSOR HOTEL, c. 1909. As part of the rebirth of the city after the fire, architect Stephen D. Button was hired to expand Thomas Whitney’s Congress Street cottage in 1879. The hotel later grew to include the West End House, built by George Hildreth c. 1852, next door. Old-timers recall Dr. Furey’s offices in this “Annex.”
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WINDSOR HOTEL, c. 1920. The home on the left was built in 1868 by iron and bronze foundry operator R.D. Wood on Windsor Street, which at first was called Wood. It was demolished in the 1930s. The Windsor Hotel remained popular through the 1960s, but, instead of celebrating its centennial in 1979, it was destroyed by a suspicious fire.
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SEA CREST INN, c. 1923. The year before Cape May lost its beloved Windsor, this smaller hotel down Beach Drive at Broadway was torn down. In 1954, Aida O. Smith claimed that her establishment had been under continuous family ownership for 40 years. “Every Room an Ocean View” was the Sea Crest motto. (FB.)
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COLTON COURT, c. 1933. This west end hotel on Beach and Patterson was created by joining the pre-1900 cottages of Thomas F. Kelly and Dr. A. New. The Thomas family owned Colton Court from 1945 to about 1970. In 1971, the hotel was torn down and replaced by a motel.
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CONCORD INN, c. 1937. Back at Grant and North, this building resembles its Victorian neighbor the Alcott House, but does not appear on a 1932 aerial photograph. In November of 1942, owner M.B. Wagner sold the Concord Inn to a Presbyterian charity whose Cape May Point “Seaside Home” had been washed into the Delaware Bay by a March storm.
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ELBERON, c. 1908. This boarding house opened on the new Congress Place in 1884. It was demolished to make room for a motel during Cape May’s Urban Renewal about 1969. Thomas Hand, Star and Wave publisher, rescued the Elberon’s right-hand neighbor by moving it to 33 Perry. Built for Eldridge Johnson c. 1880, the traditional seashore cottage now wears untraditional pink paint.
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WYOMING, c. 1906. In 1879, Mrs. J.A. Myers established this small hotel in the middle of the block between Congress Street and Perry, on South Lafayette Street. It could accommodate 50 guests and was patronized by Baltimorians. In 1925, Wm. D. Vanzant advertised his 17th season as proprietor. Today the site is the Devon parking lot.
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HOTEL DEVON, c. 1907–15. This Victorian hotel next to the Wyoming was owned and managed by Mrs. Garretson and Miss Hildreth in 1900. Today, the old Devon has been rehabilitated and is managed by a condominium association. Dubiously take note of the old sign: “Open All the Year.”



THE RUDOLPH/ SEVILLA, c. 1906. In 1879, local architect Enos Williams built this hotel at 8 Perry to replace George Doughty’s Avenue House, which had already been ablaze when Camden’s steam engine rolled off the train on November 8, 1878. That night, all that remained of the neighborhood was a “flat surface of glowing embers,” but no lives were lost. (EDH.)
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RICHARDSON’S, c. 1914. This hotel at the end of Jackson Street across from Swain’s may be the same structure that appears on an 1877 map as Cape May House. Richardson’s served the African-American community as a hotel and saloon for over 40 years. Today, it holds shops. Underwood & Underwood of New York and London published this real photo postcard. (RE.)
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BALTIMORE INN, c. 1906. Author George Thomas disputes local legend that this huge frame building was a “leftover” shipped from the Chicago World’s Fair. We do know it opened on Jackson Street in 1893 and, thereafter, Southern families moved in for the season. In 1910, baby Tommy Penrose’s mamma glued his photograph onto this postcard. In 1971, Baltimore Inn was demolished.
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CARROLL VILLA, c. 1919. In 1882, veteran hotel-owner George Hildreth replaced his burnt cottage at 19 Jackson with this new-style small inn, a contrast to the huge pre-fire hotels. Targeting Baltimorians, he named his cupola-topped villa for Charles Carroll, Maryland’s signer of the Declaration of Independence. In the 1890s, a new wing, heated bedrooms, and a larger porch were added.
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VIRGINIA HOTEL, c. 1920s. Alexander McConnell was the first on Jackson Street to rebuild after the fire, hiring Enos Williams to design this flat-roofed bracketed villa called Ebbitt House in 1879. It was raised and improved c. 1895. In 1986, Curtis Bashaw’s Chamberlain Hospitality Group invested $3 million to convert the aging Virginia into a neo-Victorian luxury hotel and restaurant.
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GLENWOOD, 1913. This real photo card shows a noteworthy shingle-style hotel built and owned by important local contractor Enos R. Williams in 1890. In 1925, manager H.M. Macomber offered “Clean rooms, Home-cooking—Plenty of food. Rates $3.50 and $4.50/day.” A parking lot now occupies this site on Hughes Street, near Decatur.
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THE ALDINE/ ELWARD, c. 1906. Here at the intersection of Decatur and Columbia, the square-towered house has been replaced by the Presbyterian church parking area and the corner building, with a vacant lot. In 1900, Aldine proprietor Theo Mueller advertised, “First class cuisine, large airy rooms, terms moderate, steam heat, sunparlor.” In the 1950s, low rents attracted summer waitresses from Kokes’ and Youngbergs’.
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LAFAYETTE HOTEL, c. 1924. Where Decatur meets Beach Drive, on the old Columbia property, Victor Denizot built this L-shaped hotel in 1884. To see Stephen D. Button’s original design in all its glory, look for earlier postcards. Here, the Lafayette has been “decolumned” by new owners Davis and Taylor in 1922. In 1970, it was replaced by the Marquis de Lafayette Motor Hotel.
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OCEAN VIEW HOTEL, c. 1940. Pharmacist William Weightman’s home was split in two and moved from Washington and Franklin to Beach and Ocean c. 1882. In 1963, when the Lafayette Hotel next door planned a motel addition, Rev. Carl McIntire saved the cottages by moving them to Trenton and New Jersey Avenues. Recently, the Girtons restored and reunited them as the Angel of the Sea.
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STAR VILLA, c. 1907. This hotel right around the corner was also moved to the east end by Dr. McIntire and has now been renovated as condominiums. Our postcard shows the 1893 fourth-floor addition, but a few early Ocean Street cards picture the original 1883 design. Notice all the star embellishments added by Philadelphia architects Collins & Autenrieth.
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COLONIAL HOTEL, c. 1910. In 1895, builders W.H. and C.S. Church opened this small Ocean Street hotel with its matching Queen Anne towers. Shown here is the south wing added in 1905 and, next door, the Stockton Baths rebuilt after the Great Fire. The 1942 Visitor Guide describes it as “cool and homelike,” mentioning elevator service and rates “$23+up American plan/week.”
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BREXTON HOTEL, c. 1906. Cape May recycles! To make room for the railroad in 1890, the pre-1850 Delaware House on Lafayette Street was moved to Ocean and Hughes to become part of the Brexton, which was then torn down in 1907. Its parts became the (Colored) DeGriff Hotel on Corgie, the Terminal Taxi building on Washington, and the house still at 918 Stockton Avenue. (CMCHS.)
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THE COLUMBIA, c. 1920s. Today, Victorian Towers occupies this Ocean Street site just across the Great Fire’s boundary. The hotel opened as the Arctic in 1874. When the Chalfonte’s Colonel Sawyer leased it in 1890, he changed the name to the Columbia. As the Sylvania, the aging hotel went from Lifeguards’ Balls to the wrecking ball. Mecray’s grocery was E-Z Market at the end. (FB.)
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STOCKTON VILLA/MACOMBER, c. 1920s. Mrs. Sara S. Davis opened this huge shingle-style hotel on the site of the former Stockton Hotel at the corner of Beach Drive and Howard Street just in time to accommodate the friends and families of servicemen crowding Cape May in 1918. The top floor shown here was destroyed by fire in 1938 and rebuilt.
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HOTEL DALE, c. 1913. Our tour of Cape May’s historic accommodations ends on Lafayette Street, east of Jefferson, where the White Hall was built in 1850 for Dr. Samuel S. Marcy, whose brick house still stands on the corner. In 1911, black entrepreneur E.W. Dale gave the old building new life as “the most finely equipped and most sanitary Afro-American hotel known.”
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HOTEL DALE. Perhaps this postcard came from the rack shown here on the check-in desk. Hotel Dale’s long list of distinguished guests includes Dr. Booker T. Washington and Dr. W.E.B. DuBois. Their testimonials join those of physicians, a college president, and a bishop in Dale’s lavish brochure. In 1936, the city razed Hotel Dale and today a motel replaces its tennis courts.
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